
SCRUTINY : GOVERNANCE, 
PERFORMANCE, BUSINESS CHANGE AND 

CORPORATE SERVICES

4.30 pm TUESDAY, 20TH DECEMBER, 2016

COUNCIL CHAMBER

Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded. 
 

This recording will not be broadcast on the Authority’s internet as it will only be used 
for training purposes by the Democratic Services Department.

The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering the Chamber 
and using the Public Seating Area, Members of the Public are consenting to being 
filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings as outlined 

above.  

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 

(01685) 725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda 
can be found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers.

AGENDA

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations) 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct

Note:

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and

(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave

3. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions 
To receive an update from the Chair

4. Update on Public Services Board and related 
activity linked to the Wellbeing of Future 
Generations Act 
To consider the attached report 1 - 10

5. Equalities and Welsh Language Performance 
Report - Organisational Support 
To consider report of the Chief Executive. 11 - 40

6. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting 
To receive an update from the Chair.

7. Scrutiny Work Programme 2016-17 
To consider the attached report 41 - 54

8. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair 



COMPOSITION: Councillor T Lewis (Chair)

Councillors: D Isaac, B Carter, D Davies, G Jones, 
L Mytton, D Roberts, L E Smart, W R Smith, S Williams 
and Richard Thomas

Co-optees:  A Harris, A L Morgan and T Skinner

together with appropriate officers

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street
Merthyr Tydfil, CF47 8AN

Main Tel:  01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Update on Public Services Board and related activity 
linked to the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act.

1. SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 Comprehensive preparations have been made regarding the establishment of the Cwm 
Taf Public Services Board and implement the Well Being of Future Generations Act.

1.2 The report sets out the progress to date along with next steps to make further 
preparations in relation to the work of the Cwm Taf Public Services Board in 
implementing the Well Being of Future Generations Act. 

1.3 This includes the completion and approval of the Well Being Assessment to inform the 
development of the Well Being Plan by March 2018, the continued development of the 
PSB’s workstreams (as identified in section 5.3 of this report), the establishment of 
joint scrutiny arrangements ( see section 5.4. of this report).  

Date Written 06 December 2016

Report Author Mark Thomas/Suzanne Davies 

Service Corporate Services

Committee Date 20 December 2016

Page 1

Agenda Item 4

http://www.merthyr.gov.uk/


2. RECOMMENDATION(S)
2.1.Progress made in establishing the Cwm Taf Public Service Board is noted

2.2.The progress made in developing the Well Being assessment is noted.

2.3.The arrangements for Scrutinising the Public Services Board are noted. 

3. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

3.1 The Act will ensure that public bodies will think more about the long term, work better 
with people and communities and each other, look to prevent problems and take a more 
joined-up approach.

3.2 This new law will mean that, for the first time, public bodies listed in the Act must do 
what they do in a sustainable way. Public bodies need to make sure that when making 
their decisions they take into account the impact they could have on people living their 
lives in Wales in the future. It will expect them to:

• work together better;
• involve people reflecting the diversity of our communities;
• look to the long term as well as focusing on now; and 
• take action to try and stop problems getting worse - or even stop them happening in 

the first place.

3.3 The Act also establishes Public Services Boards (PSBs) for each local authority area in 
Wales. Each PSB must improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-
being of its area by working to achieve the well-being goals.

3.4 Following the outcomes of a partnership review, a decision was made to establish a 
Cwm Taf Public Services Board. The Board held its inaugural meeting in May 2016 – 
approving the establishment of a Cwm Taf Public Services Board, electing a Chair and 
Vice Chair and agreeing its terms of reference. Cwm Taf is the first area in Wales to 
establish a merged single PSB. 

3.5 Sitting below the PSB is the Cwm Taf Strategic Partnership Board. This will explore new 
ways of working across organisations and adopt innovative solutions to issues that can 
only be solved in partnership in order to achieve better outcomes for the people of Cwm 
Taf.

Page 2



4. WHERE WE WERE

4.1 In December 2012, Welsh Government produced the ‘shared purpose, shared delivery’ 
guidance document which set out the role of local government and their partners, 
through local service boards (LSB’s), in helping to achieve outcomes by bringing 
together public service leaders to plan, work, deliver and improve, thereby supporting 
better outcomes for citizens.

4.2 Shared Purpose, Shared Delivery (2012) outlined the requirement for each LSB to 
undertake a needs analysis and produce a single integrated plan (SIP).  The process in 
preparing this plan was to be underpinned by clear lines of both executive and 
democratic accountability for delivery.  How this will be achieved through effective 
performance management and democratic local scrutiny was to be set out in the SIP 
itself.

4.3 The requirements of the new Well Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
replace the above. 

4.4 During 2015 – 16 a comprehensive mid-term review of Merthyr Tydfil’s SIP was 
undertaken to enable all aspects of the of the SIP to be fully considered, noting progress 
made since the Plan was approved in April 2013. This review identified key lessons 
learned and informed any adjustment to working practice required to support the 
achievement of improved outcomes for citizens going forward.

4.5 The review process also focussed on future requirements and the transitional activities 
the LSB needs to make to ensure that, as a body, it is positioned to respond positively 
to these future requirements (e.g.) the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act and 
the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act.  LSB members looked to preserve the 
supporting principles of both Acts into the revised SIP for 2015-16 to ensure they clearly 
demonstrated how they plan to manage the future generational challenges that must be 
faced in Wales in a more joined up way. 

4.6 The revised SIP for 2015/16 was approved by the Merthyr Tydfil LSB in October 2015 
and Council in November 2015. The approach and rationale behind the review was part 
of a report presented to this Scrutiny Committee on 8 December 2015. Using the 
findings of the SIP review process approval was secured from LSB members to refocus 
the SIP report card, used as a vehicle for performance management, to ensure that the 
information required to secure evidence of performance and to inform questioning/ 
challenge by LSB members regarding delivery methods and links to positive outcomes 
was made more explicit.  

4.7 In preparing for transition to Public Services Boards (PSB’s) Merthyr Tydfil LSB:

Page 3



 Ensured the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act remains a key focus point for the 
LSB support team; the LSB and SIP Steering Group members.  The Act is a 
standing agenda point for both of these groups;

 Invited Natural Resources Wales and the South Wales Fire and Rescue Service to 
attend Merthyr Tydfil LSB. This was followed by a presentation by both organisations 
at the December 2015 meeting of the LSB to discuss transition, how both 
organisations see their role on PSB going forward and how their organisations are 
contributing to the current SIP;  

 Developed a first draft of a terms of reference which will now need to be considered 
in line with the development of a Cwm Taf PSB moving forward.

 Jointly responded (with RCT LSB) to the draft Guidance on the Act;
 Undertaken consultation on the National Indicator Set – a workshop event with the 

Local Authority and its SIP partners was held on the 18 December and a response 
was provided to Welsh Government; 

 Areas for consideration by scrutiny  in 15/16 included:
 Report regarding Requirements of the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act:  

Overview of the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act and the role of partnerships 
to support local implementation.

 Update on Performance Management of the Reviewed SIP:  SIP review including 
performance management arrangements to monitor delivery of the SIP.

 The transition from Local Service Boards to Public Service Board:  Overview of 
the transition arrangements from LSBs to PSBs and overview of the 
requirements of PSBs.

 A proposal was agreed by the Cwm Taf Social Services & Wellbeing Executive 
Board, and both Merthyr Tydfil and RCT LSB’s to develop a joint needs assessment 
supporting both the Social Services and Well Being and Well Being of Future 
Generations Acts across the Cwm Taf footprint.  

There is considerable overlap between the SSWB Act population assessment and 
the assessment of local wellbeing needed for the WBFG Act. Whilst being mindful to 
ensure that care and support needs are not lost in the broader issue of wellbeing, or 
conversely that care and support for the vulnerable over dominates the wellbeing 
agenda, it was strongly felt that a combined approach aligning the workstreams and 
producing one assessment would be both an effective and efficient way forward.

The benefits of this approach include the adoption of a common language upon 
which discussions can be based; assurance of a commonality of assumptions; a 
standardised methodology being adopted across Cwm Taf linked to data analysis 
and interpretation and the sharing of skilled, experienced staff to undertake this 
process. There has been a consensus amongst partners that we must focus more 
time and effort on developing better understanding and analysis in our needs 
assessments so we create the intelligence and ability to answer the “so what” 
questions i.e. moving from a 'situation analysis' to a 'response analysis'.  

Page 4



 In relation to our partnership agenda; a project was been undertaken across Cwm 
Taf to look at the streamlining and developing of effective partnership arrangements 
in the Community Safety arena across Cwm Taf along with agreement in principle to 
a joint Cwm Taf PSB moving forward. An initial report was presented to Cwm Taf 
RCB at its meeting in October 2015 and it was agreed in principle (subject to a 
further options paper) to:

 the creation of one Cwm Taf Public Service Board; and 
 to create a Cwm Taf Strategic Partnership Board.

4.8  The engagement and consultation requirements of the new Act forms will now form part 
of the work programme of the Cwm Taf Public Engagement (PEG) Group.

5. WHERE WE ARE NOW
5.1 This section identified the progress to date in relation to the work of the Cwm Taf Public 

Services Board and its workstreams. 

5.2 The new Cwm Taf Public Services Board has been established and agreed its terms of 
reference, elected its Chair and Vice Chair, agreed its membership along with 
developing its Statement of Intent (see Appendix 1).

5.3 A number of PSB workstreams have been agreed and are being driven by the Strategic 
Partnership Board with identified leads (across public service partners) for each of the 
worksteams. The workstreams are as follows:

i. Developing an approach to preventative spend; 
ii. Developing an innovative and proactive approach to involving individuals and 

service users; 
iii. Identifying the underlying causes of substance misuse and the public services 

response; 
iv. Adopting a place based approach; 
v. Seeking to adopt a different approach to managing demand for child and 

adolescent services including mental health; 
vi. Developing a digital platform and framework for performance of the Public 

Service Board and public service organisations; 
vii. Developing and nurturing the public sector workforce; and 
viii. On-going legacy actions of the previous Cwm Taf Regional Collaboration Board 

including:
 PSB Scrutiny arrangements; 
 Partnership governance in other thematic areas; and 
 Collaborative partnership support. 

Task and finish groups are already in place and are finalising the scope of each piece of 
work. 

5.4 In relation to the development of PSB Scrutiny arrangements: 

Page 5



 On the 31st March 2016, Rebecca David-Knight (Centre for Public Scrutiny) was 
commissioned to provide training entitled 'Community Leadership for Future 
Generations' and scrutiny members from both Local Authorities were in attendance. 
The training was well received and we are considering a follow-up session in 
2016/17 for the scrutiny arrangements relating to the PSB; 

 On-going dialogue and discussions have taken place with the Scrutiny Officer and 
Scrutiny colleagues in RCT regarding the development of joint scrutiny 
arrangements. Scrutiny must focus on well being and ensure that the PSB adopts 
the five ways of working and to bring forward community intelligence in their role as 
elected members;

 Reports have been presented to Councillors in both Merthyr Tydfil and RCT in order 
to raise awareness of the requirements of the Act and progress to date;

 Both Councils have agreed that existing scrutiny committees will perform the role of 
scrutinising the PSB until the new joint committee is established;

 Both Councils have agreed the proposal to set up a joint scrutiny committee, with 
this Council , agreeing at its meeting on the 5 October : 

 to the setting up of a Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JOSC) comprising 
elected Members of both Rhondda Cynon Taf and Merthyr Tydfil County
Borough Councils to scrutinise the Cwm Taf Public Services Board;

 In the absence of any statutory guidance for the joint scrutiny of Public Service
Boards, the establishment of the Joint Scrutiny Committee be in accordance with 
the requirements of Section 58 of the Local Government (Wales) Measure, 2011,
regulations and statutory guidance;

 the draft terms of reference and giving the Chief Executive, in consultation with 
the Leader of the Council and the Chair of the Governance, Performance, 
Business Change and Corporate Services Scrutiny Committee, delegated 
authority to amend and finalise the terms of reference in accordance with the 
parameters set out in the report; and 

 When this Authority is to be nominated to the position of Chair of the Joint 
Scrutiny Committee, Council agrees whether the post is to be remunerated in 
accordance with the Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales’s 
determinations (s).

5.5 In relation to the development of the Population and Well Being Assessments by the 
required date of March 2017, (as identified in 4.7 above) progress to date includes:  

 A multi agency Core Group meets monthly to oversee and deliver the work needed. 
Membership includes representation from Cwm Taf UHB, RCT and Merthyr Tydfil 
CBCs, South Wales Fire and Rescue, Natural Resources Wales, Public Health 
Wales, County Voluntary Councils (CVCs), the Police and Crime Commissioner and 
Data Unit~Wales. Two sub groups, one for Data and one for Engagement, have 
been established to lead the detailed work needed for both the quantative and 
qualitative aspects of the assessments. 

Page 6



 The SSWB Delivering Transformation Grant and the WFG Wellbeing Fund have 
been used to fund additional partnership analytical capacity. Appointments have 
been made to two posts (1.6fte) from June 2016 to March 2017. 

 The first stage of drafting of the population needs assessment has been the 
production of seven briefing documents, one relating to each client group identified 
within the SSWB Act. The first draft of the wellbeing assessment has produced four 
briefing documents, one relating to each theme of the WFG Act.

 Each briefing document was assigned a lead author, who has worked closely with 
relevant services and wider partners to produce the document. Engagement with 
stakeholders to inform the documents has included:

 Conversations with various stakeholders at a host of public events across Cwm 
Taf, using prompts to find out what is important to communities, what is 
positive/what makes communities happy and ideas on how wellbeing  can be 
improved;

 Conversations amongst established groups and forums, facilitated by the groups 
themselves or partners from the Engagement Sub Group, using the same 
prompts; and

 Online questionnaires.

 Opportunities for engagement have been promoted through social media, 
signposting, networking and marketing. The return on all engagement opportunities 
has been very good, with stakeholders getting involved, feeding in and facilitating 
their own conversations.

 A series of stakeholder workshops were held in October and November to continue 
the conversations, focusing in particular on the headlines that have been emerging 
from the briefing documents, understanding what gaps or limitations there might be 
and starting to explore some responses.

6. NEXT STEPS 
6.1 In relation to the development of joint scrutiny arrangements for the PSB, further work is 

now taking place to develop the terms of reference and to agree the date of the first 
meeting. 

6.2 Continue to develop and deliver the PSB workstreams as identified in 5.3 above. 

6.3 Following the engagement workshops for the Population Needs Assessment and Well 
Being Assessment (as detailed in 4.7 and 5.5 above), the briefing documents are now in 
the process of being redrafted. Coordination between authors and identifying 
appropriate stakeholders, gaps in data, cross cutting links and common themes is also 
ongoing. Future iterations will see the relevant briefing documents edited into one 
population needs assessment report and one wellbeing assessment. More detailed, 
technical documents will be available online as appropriate.

Page 7



The draft Wellbeing assessment must be consulted on formally with a number of 
statutory consultees including local authority scrutiny committees and the Future 
Generations Commissioner for Wales. A timeline for statutory consultation has been 
developed with presentation to scrutiny across both local authorities timetabled for late 
January/early February 2017. Guidance does not prescribe a timescale or process for 
this, or what the consultation “product” should look like. Discussion is therefore 
underway with WG and the Future Generations Commissioner about their views on the 
consultation process and how this can best be managed within the overall timescales 
set by WG.

Mark Thomas
Head of Corporate Services

Does the report contain any issues that 
may affect the Council’s Constitution? NO

Page 8



APPENDIX I
Cwm Taf Public Services Board: Statement of Intent

CWM TAF PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD

STATEMENT OF INTENT 
OCTOBER 2016

The members of the Cwm Taf Public Services Board are committed to developing a 
collaborative public service that puts the people in our communities at its centre.

We intend to lead our organisations through a change in culture to a more innovative, 

integrated and preventative way of doing things for the benefit of people who live and work in 

Cwm Taf now and in the future. We will use our influence as a Board to encourage other public 

organisations to adopt the same approach and to make a collective effort in overcoming any 

legislative, financial or practical barriers to achieving our intent.

We aim to shift focus from reacting to problems and challenge 'crisis management', seeking to 

make decisions for the long term benefit of people in Cwm Taf. We aim to focus our joint 

efforts far more on better outcomes for the people we serve through understanding and 

tackling the causes of problems and preventing situations from arising.

To do this, we aim to be radical, removing the divisions between services to develop a way of 

working that makes sense to us and to the people and communities we serve. To understand 

what that means, we will be involving people, in an equal relationship to the Board, to design, 

deliver and improve services.

This will involve working together with citizens, and within our own organisations, in a different 

way through making some high-risk decisions and attempting the things that seem too difficult 

to do. 

As a Board, we intend to spend our finances in a different way, continue to train our staff to get 

to the root of issues and give permission to staff to support and enable people to live better 

lives.

Page 9



Who we are:

The Cwm Taf Public Services Board is made up of the senior managers and leaders of the public and 
voluntary sector organisations across Merthyr Tydfil and Rhondda Cynon Taf, including:

 Chief Constable, South Wales Police (current 
Chair);

 Chief Superintendent, South Wales Police;
 Operations Manager, Natural Resources 

Wales;
 Elected Leaders, Merthyr Tydfil County 

Borough Council and Rhondda Cynon Taf 
Council;

 Chairs, Voluntary Action Merthyr Tydfil and 
Interlink RCT;

 Deputy Police & Crime Commissioner, South 
Wales Police.

 Chair, Cwm Taf University Health Board;
 Director, Welsh Government.

 Chief Executive, Cwm Taf University Health 
Board;

 Director of Public Health, Cwm Taf University 
Health Board;

 Chief Executives, Merthyr Tydfil County 
Borough Council and Rhondda Cynon Taf 
Council;

 Chief Fire Officer, South Wales Fire and Rescue 
Service;

 Chief Officer for Cwm Taf, National Probation 
Service;

 Chief Officer for Cwm Taf, Community 
Rehabilitation Company.

It is the principal strategic leadership forum for the planning, commissioning and delivery of public 
services across organisational boundaries to achieve better outcomes for the people of Cwm Taf.

Page 10



Civic Centre, Castle Street
Merthyr Tydfil, CF47 8AN

Main Tel:  01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Equalities and Welsh Language Performance 
Report - Organisational Support

1. SUMMARY OF THE REPORT
1.1 The report identifies that outcomes for 2014/15 for Equalities & Welsh Language 

were both Adequate.

1.2 For 2015/16 the report identifies that outcomes were Good for Equalities and 
Adequate for Welsh Language. This is because:
 Comprehensive preparations were made for the development of the new 

Strategic Equality Plan 2016-20 with engagement with key stakeholders, 
residents, partners and other organisations.

 The new Plan contains 12 measures to report on progress in delivering the Plan. 
These will be captured during this year with some new indicators requiring 
baselines to be established.

 The ongoing work that is being undertaken to support the Armed Forces 
Community Covenant. The Royal British Legion Wales have recognised the work 
of Merthyr Veterans Support Group (the Merthyr Project) and are using this as 
an exemplar across Wales.

 Preparations have been made for the introduction of the new Welsh Language 
Standards however the Council has appealed against a number of them as we 
will have difficulty in achieving full compliance due to low numbers of Welsh 
speaking staff, the need to amend/change corporate systems, as well as the 
costs and availability of translators. 

Date Written 09 December 2016

Report Author Mark Thomas/Kerry O’Donovan 

Service Corporate Services

Committee Date 20 December 2016

Page 11

Agenda Item 5

http://www.merthyr.gov.uk/


 We are continuing to improve compliance with the Standards and are making 
every effort to respond to them in a positive manner.

1.3 The report sets out the next steps to improve performance and the projects/initiatives 
that will support the Council delivering on Equalities and the Welsh Language. 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)
2.1. The judgements and evaluations are noted and discussed.
2.2. The progress made and next steps in addressing Equalities and the Welsh Language 

are noted.

3. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

National Context

3.1. All local authorities in Wales are required to secure continuous improvement in the 
exercise of their functions by identifying their own priorities for improvement. This legal 
requirement is set out in the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009.

Council Vision

3.2. To strengthen Merthyr Tydfil’s position as the regional centre for the Heads of the 
Valleys, and be a place to be proud of where:

a) People learn and develop skills to fulfil their ambitions.
b) People live, work, have a safe, healthy and fulfilled life.
c) People visit, enjoy and return.

Equalities

3.3. The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) brings together and replaces the previous 
antidiscrimination laws with a single Act. It simplifies and strengthens the law, 
removes inconsistencies and makes it easier for people to understand and comply 
with it.

3.4. The Act includes a new public sector equality duty (the ‘general duty’), replacing the 
separate duties on race, disability and gender equality. This came into force on 5th 
April 2011. The new general duty covers the following protected characteristics:

 Age.
 Gender reassignment.
 Sex.
 Race – including ethnic or national origin, colour or nationality.
 Disability.
 Pregnancy and maternity.
 Sexual orientation.
 Religion or belief – including lack of belief.

Page 12



 Marriage and civil partnership.
3.5. The aim of the general duty is to ensure that public authorities and those carrying out 

a public function consider how they can positively contribute to a fairer society through 
advancing equality and good relations in their day-to-day activities. The duty ensures 
that equality considerations are built into the design of policies and the delivery of 
services and that they are kept under review. This will achieve better outcomes for all. 
Public bodies are required to have due regard to the need to:

 Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other 
conduct that is prohibited by the Act.

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and those who do not.

 Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not.

3.6. The Council is committed to the principles of equality, diversity and social justice and 
we work to ensure that this is demonstrated in service delivery and employment. The 
Equalities Vision for Merthyr Tydfil is:

“A place where diversity is valued and respected and everyone can participate, 
flourish and have the opportunity to fulfil their potential free from discrimination 
and prejudice.”

3.7. The Council will work towards achieving this Vision through our role as a community 
leader, service provider, commissioner and employer, and we will work in partnership 
to reduce inequalities and to improve the well-being of the County Borough.

3.8. In May 2011 the UK Government sought to improve the current relationship between 
the nation, government and the Armed Forces by introducing an Armed Forces 
Covenant. This document outlines a set of principles or moral obligations, enshrined in 
the Armed Forces Act 2011, by which members of the armed forces and their families 
should expect to be treated. It also helps to avoid any possible disadvantages which 
they might encounter.

3.9. To complement the Armed Forces Covenant at a more local level, Armed Forces 
Community Covenants were introduced, not to replace what existing level of local 
support there was for the Armed Forces, but to build upon it.

Welsh Language

3.10. The Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 replaced the Welsh Language Act 1993 
and as part of the new legislation in Wales the Welsh Language has equal legal status 
with English and must not be treated less favourably. Public bodies no longer need to 
develop and implement Welsh Language Schemes but instead now must comply with 
a set of national Welsh Language Standards.

3.11. Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council received its final Compliance Notice from the 
Welsh Language Commissioner on 30th September 2015. This outlined the Council’s 

Page 13



duty to meet 171 of the statutory Welsh Language Standards established by the 
Welsh Government under the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011. The 
implementation date for most of the Standards is the 30th March 2016 with the 
remainder by 30th September 2016 and 30th September 2017.

3.12. Welsh Language is a key element of the Council’s Equality agenda. The Council 
promote and facilitate the use of the Welsh language by observing the following 
guiding principles:

 Individuals have the right to deal with us in Welsh.
 Welsh must be positioned to be read first (to the left or above the English).
 Language rights for staff.
 The quality of service and a positive attitude are important.
 We must offer Welsh language services to give language choice.

4. WHERE WE WERE
Equalities

4.1. An Equality Improvement Peer Review led by the Welsh Local Government 
Association (WLGA) was carried out at the Council in June 2013. This resulted in the 
production of an action plan which the Council has been implementing. Progress was 
reviewed by the WLGA in the Summer of 2014 and we received very positive 
feedback.

4.2. An internal audit of progress on the delivery of the action plan was also carried out in 
December 2014. Their findings were as follows:

 It has been determined that action is being taken in line with the proposals stated in 
the Equality Improvement Peer Review report published by the Welsh Local 
Government Association.

 We have determined that at the time of this audit the progress in assessing and 
implementing the proposals for improvement identified in the peer review is 
assessed as good and that the Equality Action Plan provides a stable platform in 
ensuring that all proposals are addressed by management.

4.3. The Council’s Strategic Equality Plan and Equality Objectives for 2012-2016 were 
approved by Full Council on 29th February 2012.

4.4. The Council is required to prepare and publish an annual report every year noting 
progress across all aspects of its equalities work, including progress on delivering its 
Equality Objectives. The last annual report was approved by Cabinet on 23rd March 
2016.

4.5. The Council’s new Strategic Equality Plan for 2016-2020 contains a number of 
Measures of Success, which are discussed in more detail in Section 5 of this Report.

4.6. The Council signed the Armed Forces Community Covenant in May 2013. The 
Council’s pledge to the Armed Forces Community Covenant recognises the dual 

Page 14



respect between the Local Authority, its partner agencies, its communities and our 
Armed Forces personnel (serving and retired) and their families. 

4.7. The Council supports an Armed Forces Support Group, which is run by local members 
of the Royal British Legion (Dowlais and Town Branches). Membership also includes 
ex naval officers and Welsh Guards. 

4.8. This is a social group that offers help, advice and signposting to relevant agencies for 
issues such as benefits, housing problems, debt, socialising, employment, health 
issues etc.

4.9. A regional board has been set up between Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council and 
Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council, which is the Cwm Taf Community 
Covenant Panel. The Panel meets on a quarterly basis, and the main purpose is to 
discuss and assess any Covenant funding applications that are received.

4.10. A Guide to Services for Armed Forces Personnel and their families booklet has been 
published and distributed widely across the County Borough. The booklet includes 
contacts for Health, Housing, Leisure, Education, etc.  

4.11. Royal British Legion staff from the Cardiff branch attended the Civic Centre in 
November 2013 to deliver awareness sessions to frontline staff. The session outlined 
what the signing of the Community Covenant means for the Council, the staff and the 
military personnel and their families. The sessions were well received. Elected 
members were also updated prior to the signing of the Community Covenant. 

4.12. The Royal British Legion published a Community Covenant Checklist for Local 
Authorities to work towards in the early days following the signing of the Covenant. 
The Council achieved the five points within the Checklist soon after signing the 
Community Covenant. A further policy checklist has now been published by the Royal 
British Legion and the Council are working towards delivery and achievement of the 
points within.

4.13. The Council’s Strategic Equality Plan for 2012-2016 did not contain any measures; 
therefore it is difficult to assess outcomes for that period. However, based on the 
comments above and the progress reported in the Council’s last Equalities Annual 
Report for 2014/15, outcomes have been assessed as adequate.

Welsh Language 

4.14. The Council adopted the principle that, in the conduct of public business in Wales, it 
would treat the English and Welsh languages on the basis of equality. The Council’s 
Welsh Language Statement (approved by Full Council in January 2014) set out how 
the Local Authority would implement the principle in the provision of bilingual services 
to the public. 

4.15. The Statement was a statutory requirement of the Welsh Language Act 1993 and 
subsequently the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011, and remained in force until 
the introduction of the Welsh Language Standards on 30th March 2016.

Page 15



4.16. The following table below demonstrates the number of complaints received in relation 
to the compliance of the Welsh Language Scheme during 2014/15:

Key Indicator 2014/15
Actual

Ranking 2014/15
Target

The number of complaints 
received in relation to the 
compliance of the Welsh 
Language Scheme.

2 n/a 0

4.17. The Council is required to prepare and publish a Welsh language annual report by the 
30th June each year. The Council’s Annual Report for 2014-15 was approved by 
Cabinet on 17th June 2015 and showed activity and progress in a number of key areas 
across the Council, including for example Economic Development, Children and 
Young People, and Adult Community Learning.

4.18. Based on the Council’s Welsh Language Annual Report for 2014-15, outcomes were 
assessed as adequate.

5. WHERE WE ARE NOW

Reference to Measures
(Full details in Appendix I)

Equalities

5.1. In order to emphasise the importance of Equalities across the Council, Councillor 
Ernie Galsworthy is Councillor Equality Champion.

5.2. The Equality Act 2010 and Public Sector Equality Duty requires the Council to review 
its Strategic Equality Plan and Objectives at least every four years.

5.3. To support the review of the Council’s Strategic Equality Plan and Equality 
Objectives for 2012-2016 a Task and Finish Group was established.

5.4. The Task and Finish Group consisted of the Council’s Equalities Champion, Council 
Officers and key stakeholders that represent hard to reach groups in the community.

5.5. These key stakeholders were from The Big Lottery – Community Voice MAGNET 
Project (Merthyr Achieving Greater Networking and Engagement Together), which 
provides an opportunity for members of marginalised communities to increase their 
voice in influencing public service providers policy, planning and delivery processes.

5.6. Engagement with these key stakeholders provided a co-productive approach to the 
review of the Strategic Equality Plan and added real value and challenge. 

5.7. Feedback from the MAGNET Project Leads was very positive in that they felt they 
had been involved in helping to inform and shape the revised Strategic Equality Plan.

Page 16



5.8. As part of the review of the Council’s Strategic Equality Plan it was identified that an 
Equalities Vision for Merthyr Tydfil was essential in order to set out the Local 
Authority’s Ambition to eliminate discrimination / harassment, advance equality and 
foster good relations. The following Equalities Vision for Merthyr Tydfil has been 
developed:

“A place where diversity is valued and respected and everyone can participate, 
flourish and have the opportunity to fulfil their potential free from 
discrimination and prejudice.”

5.9. This Vision is supported by four Equality Objectives for 2016-2020 that are listed in 
the table below:

Themes Equality Objectives

Community 
Engagement

Equality Objective 1 
Put citizens’ voices at the heart of local decision making so 
that their contribution is understood, recognised and used to 
help the Council understand and respond to the needs of its 
communities.

Equality 
Awareness Raising

Equality Objective 2
To support and facilitate Equalities training and learning 
opportunities so that staff at all levels, Councillors and 
partners recognise and incorporate Equalities as part of their 
role.

Understanding
our Staff and 
Communities

Equality Objective 3
Develop robust monitoring systems to collect, collate, 
monitor and publish equalities data on our employees and 
customers, which will help the Council to ensure that it 
provides fair and accessible services.

Gender/Equal Pay Equality Objective 4
Ensure equity of pay across Merthyr Tydfil County Borough 
Council.

5.10. The Council’s Strategic Equality Plan for 2016-2020 was developed in partnership 
with Council Officers and partners.

5.11. The Council’s Vision and Equality Objectives for 2016-2020 will contribute to 
delivering:

 The seven Well-being Goals and Sustainable Development Principles that are set 
out in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.

 Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014.

5.12. As part of the consultation and engagement process on the Equality Objectives for 
2016-2020 the Council used the Cwm Taf Community Engagement Hub, which gave 
residents, partners and other organisations the opportunity to have their say on the 
Objectives.

Page 17



5.13. There were 45 respondents in total for the consultation, however not all of these 
completed all of the questions. The response to the consultation was very positive in 
support of the Council’s Vision and Equality Objectives for 2016-2020. The following 
demonstrates the percentage of responses who either strongly agreed or agreed 
with the Council’s Vision and Equality Objectives:

 Vision = 82%.
 Equality Objective 1 (Community Engagement) = 68%.
 Equality Objective 2 (Equality Awareness Raising) = 74%.
 Equality Objective 3 (Understanding our Staff and Communities) = 70%.
 Equality Objective 4 (Gender/Equal Pay) = 90%.

5.14. The Council’s Strategic Equality Plan for 2016-2020 was approved by Full Council on 
23rd March 2016. The Action Plan in the Strategic Equality Plan contains Measures 
of Success for each Equality Objective, which are listed in Appendix 1 of this Report. 
Some of these Measures will require a baseline to be established for 2016-17. 

5.15. The Council will publish an Annual Equality Report that will include the performance 
of the Measures.

5.16. Free swimming for Armed Forces and veterans is the latest initiative to be launched 
by the Welsh Government as part of its Package of Support for the Armed Forces 
Community. Merthyr Leisure Centre, Aberfan and Merthyr Vale Community Centres 
now offer free swimming during public swim times for armed service personnel and 
veterans, residing in Wales.

5.17. The Royal British Legion Wales have recognised the work of Merthyr Veterans 
Support Group (the Merthyr Project) and are using this as an exemplar across 
Wales.

5.18. Two, two bedroom flats in Trefechan, Merthyr Tydfil, have been refurbished by 
Merthyr Valleys Homes for homeless veterans. There will also be a drop in centre 
made available in the same building to provide support and advice.

5.19. Below is a list of the organisations currently committed to the Covenant:

 All Wales Veteran Health & Wellbeing.
 Army Benevolent Fund (ABF).
 Citizens Advice Bureau.
 Combat Stress.
 Help For Heroes.
 Cwm Taf Local Health Board.
 Merthyr Tydfil Housing Association (MTHA).
 Merthyr Valleys Homes (MVH).
 Remploy.
 Royal British Legion.
 Service Leavers Wales.
 South Wales Police.
 SORTED.

Page 18



 SSAFA.
 The British Army.
 Veterans UK.
 Voluntary Action Merthyr Tydfil (VAMT).

5.20. Based on the comments above and the work that was undertaken to review and 
publish the Council’s new Strategic Equality Plan for 2016-2020, outcomes have 
been assessed as good.

Welsh Language

5.21. In order to emphasise the importance of Welsh language across the Council, 
Councillor Ernie Galsworthy is Councillor Welsh language Champion.

5.22. The Council’s Welsh Language Annual Report for 2015-2016 was approved by 
Cabinet on 15th June 2016. The Report focuses on the preparations that the Local 
Authority has made for the introduction of the Standards. Further detail on this 
progress can be found in Section 6 of this Report (How did we get there?).

5.23. To support the Council in implementing the Standards the Local Authority has 
appointed a Welsh Language Officer. This is making a considerable difference to the 
progress we are able to make in addressing the Standards and in supporting 
Services.

5.24. In line with most other Councils, we have appealed against a number of the 
Standards as there are Departments within the Council that will not be able to 
comply for various reasons including low numbers of Welsh speaking staff, the need 
to amend/change corporate systems, as well as the costs and availability of 
translators to support compliance. This is in the context of the financial climate the 
Council is currently operating in and the scale of cuts that are expected in future 
years.

5.25. As a Council we are endeavouring to comply with the Standards which came into 
force on 30th March 2016 and are making every effort to respond to them in a 
positive manner.

5.26. The following table below demonstrates the number of complaints received in 
relation to the compliance of the Welsh Language Scheme during 2015/16:

Key Indicator 2015/16
Actual

Ranking 2015/16 
Target

The number of complaints 
received in relation to the 
compliance of the Welsh 
Language Scheme.

0 n/a 0

5.27. Based on the progress that the Council has made in preparing for the introduction of 
the Standards, outcomes have been assessed as adequate.

Page 19



6. HOW DID WE GET HERE

Reference to Initiatives/projects
(Full details in Appendix II)

Equalities Initiatives/Projects

The following Equality Objectives are taken from the Council’s Strategic Equality Plan 
for 2016-2020

6.1. Equality Objective 1 - Community Engagement.
6.2. Equality Objective 2 - Equality Awareness Raising. 
6.3. Equality Objective 3 - Understanding our Staff and Communities.
6.4. Equality Objective 4 - Gender/Equal Pay

Equalities Initiatives Completed

6.5. A Task and Finish Group was established to review the Council’s Strategic Equality 
Plan and Equality Objectives.

6.6. Consultation and engagement was undertaken on the Equality Objectives for 2016-
2020.

6.7. The Council’s Strategic Equality Plan for 2016-2020 was developed in partnership 
with Council Officers and partners and was approved by Full Council on 23rd March 
2016.

6.8. The Council’s Strategic Equality Plan for 2016-2020 was published on the Council’s 
website, the performance and delivery of which, will be published in an Annual 
Equality Report. Progress will also be reported to Scrutiny through this Performance 
Report for Equality and Welsh Language. Examples, however of some of the 
developments on progressing the Actions for the Objectives are listed below:

 Equality training have been provided to the Council’s Senior Leadership Team and 
Councillors by the MAGNET Project to provide Council employees and Councillors 
with an insight, knowledge and understanding about the different communities that 
each project represents, and the communities that they represent. The training 
sessions consisted of the following:

o Key issues facing these minority groups.
o Discuss next steps i.e. what can you do in your role to further engage with the 

projects to influence Council policy, planning and shaping of services?

The Chief Executive has invited the MAGNET Project back to provide follow up 
training to the Senior Leadership Team in February 2017 focussing on the 
experiences of the project leads and members of their groups in accessing Council 
services.

Page 20



 The Council was proud to be part of Pride Cymru 2016 in August with other public 
sector organisations from across South Wales to engage with the Lesbian, Gay, 
Bisexual and Transgender (LGBT) community. The aim was to engage with the 
LGBT community to find out what issues are important to them, and as a result, 
improve the experiences of local LGBT people across South Wales when 
accessing public services.

To celebrate this event the Rainbow flag was raised outside the Civic Centre on the 
same day as Price Cymru.

 The Council has reviewed its Equalities Monitoring Form to ensure that it captures 
the necessary Equality data on its employees by taking into account the Public 
Sector Equality Duty reporting and relevant information requirements.

The Equalities Monitoring Form that captures the equalities data has been 
developed as a section in HR21. This was issued to all staff in September 2016. 
The staff that do not have access to a computer have been provided with hard 
copies of the Form from their managers to complete.

As at 10th November 2016, approximately 92% of Council staff and 60% of School 
Staff have completed the Form. This compares to approximately 18% previously 
across both Council and School staff.

 To raise the profile and support the Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender 
(LGBT) community within Merthyr Tydfil and build on the LGBT History month 
events held in the libraries and museum for the first year in 2014, the Mayor and 
local MP raised the Rainbow flag outside the Civic Centre. This was the second 
consecutive year that this has been done.

 We have engaged regionally with partners on Hate Crime in order to increase 
awareness and understanding. This included a Cwm Taf Hate Crime Awareness 
Event held during Hate Crime Awareness Week to highlight the ongoing work being 
conducted in the Cwm Taf area to raise awareness and support victims of hate 
crime.

In addition, the Council and its schools supported Show Racism the Red Card’s 
“Wear Red Day” on Friday 21st October 2016.

6.9. In relation to the Armed Forces the Council continue to support the Community 
Covenant as shown in Section 5 of this Report. The Council aims to ensure that the 
Armed Forces Community Covenant is underpinned by the daily work of the Local 
Authority and its partner agencies to deliver and protect frontline services for those 
who need them the most for example through the Armed Forces Support Group and 
Free Swimming Initiative.

Welsh Language Initiatives/projects

6.10. The Council will publish an Annual Welsh Language Report on progressing the 
Standards. Progress will also be reported to Scrutiny through this Performance Report 

Page 21



for Equality and Welsh Language. Some examples however on Welsh language 
projects that are currently being progressed are listed below:

 The Council’s has drafted its Welsh Language Promotional Strategy following 
consultation with the Fforwm Sirol. A draft Business Case has also been prepared 
for the Strategy which includes the related costs, timelines and barriers to 
implementation 

 There has been a record number of staff learning Welsh this year where we are 
now running a Mynediad 1 and 2 class.

 The Council is currently working with Canolfan Soar:
o To undertake “Mystery Shopper” exercises to help identify any areas for 

improvement and areas where we are at risk of non-compliance with the 
Standards.

o To pilot bespoke, short, targeted training courses to address some of the 
critical issues raised in our discussions with Chief Officers, Heads of Service 
and Line Managers.

Welsh Language Initiatives completed

6.11. In order to reach a definitive view on the Council’s ability to be able to comply with the 
Standards all services across the Local Authority were requested to undertake a self-
assessment during December 2015 to assess their service areas current position 
against each Standard. 

6.12. In order to maintain a corporate oversight of the Standards the self-assessment was 
re-issued to all services across the Council in April 2016 for service areas to review 
and update their progress in implementing the Standards. These self-assessments 
are being used as an Action Plan and monitoring tool both within services and to 
inform a Corporate Action Plan.

6.13. A 30 week Welsh language class for beginners (Mynediad 1) started in September 
2015 for staff to attend during working. Nine members of staff attended this class. This 
class is going to continue in September 2016 in addition to a Mynediad Year 2 class 
also starting.

6.14. A number of reports on the Standards have been presented to Corporate 
Management Team during 2015-2016.

6.15. The Council’s Senior Leadership Team received presentations on the Standards in 
March and April 2016.

6.16. To support staff in implementing the Standards a Welsh Language Staff Briefing has 
been developed and communicated to all staff and Councillors. The Staff Briefing sets 
out some of the key messages from the Standards that we corporately need to comply 
with.

6.17. A separate Guide has also been developed and communicated to all staff and 
Councillors setting out guidance for bilingual out of office messages, contact details in 
e-mail signatures and email footer logos to indicate language skills.

6.18. A list has been made available on the Intranet of Welsh speaking staff from across the 
Council who have volunteered to assist the Local Authority in speaking to customers 
through the medium of Welsh, on occasions that there is nobody available to speak to 
them in service areas.

Page 22



6.19. The Council’s website has been updated and translated and the requirements of the 
Standards have been built into the training for website authors and approvers that has 
been rolled out across the Council.

6.20. Welsh Language Resources have been made available on the Council’s Intranet, 
which include for example, Welsh Language Translation, Welsh Speaking Volunteers, 
Staff Briefings and the Standards.

6.21. A session was held for Housing Staff to help with Welsh language pronunciation run 
by Menter Iaith Merthyr Tudful.

6.22. Reception staff have received Welsh language training from a Welsh speaking 
member of reception staff, which has included communicating key Welsh words and 
phrases.

6.23. The Council’s corporate logo has been reviewed and updated in line with the 
requirements of the Standards, where the Welsh is now read first. The updated logo 
has been communicated via an all staff email.

6.24. Corporate letterhead templates have also been reviewed and updated in line with the 
requirements of the Standards where the Welsh is read first. An all staff email has 
been sent advising of the new templates which have been made available on the 
Council’s Intranet.

6.25. The Council has contributed to the work recently completed profiling the Welsh 
language in communities in South East Wales including that of Merthyr Tydfil. This 
information will help inform the production of a strategy that we have to publish, as 
required by the Standards, that sets out how we propose to promote the Welsh 
language and to facilitate the use of the Welsh language more widely in the area.

Lessons Learnt

6.26. By undertaking the Welsh Language self-assessment it has:
 Helped service areas to better understand the requirements of the Standards.
 Enabled Managers to identify what they need to do to address the Standards.

 
7. WHERE WE WANT TO BE

Equalities

7.1. The Council is committed to the principles of equality, diversity and social justice and 
we work to ensure that this is demonstrated in service delivery and employment. 

7.2. Our Equalities Vision for Merthyr Tydfil is:

“A place where diversity is valued and respected and everyone can participate, 
flourish and have the opportunity to fulfil their potential free from 
discrimination and prejudice.”

7.3. The Council will work towards achieving this Vision through our role as a community 
leader, service provider, commissioner and employer, and we will work in partnership 
to reduce inequalities and to improve the well-being of the County Borough.

Page 23



7.4. This Vision is supported by the following four Equality Objectives for 2016-2020:

Equality Objective 1 - Community Engagement:
 Residents of the Merthyr Tydfil communities are provided with an equal 

opportunity to increase their voice and actively participate in influencing Council 
policy, planning and shaping of services.

 Protected characteristic groups are consistently considered throughout the 
development of consultation and engagement work.

Equality Objective 2 - Equality Awareness Raising: 
 Staff, Councillors and partner organisations receive training on Equalities.
 The Council promotes equalities in the workplace.
 Councillors are empowered with an insight, knowledge and understanding about 

the different communities they represent in the County Borough.

Equality Objective 3 - Understanding our Staff and Communities:
 There is an improved understanding and evidenced based profile of Council 

employees, which will:
o Ensure we are a good employer that provides equal opportunities for all staff.
o Effectively deploy our duty of care to our employees.
o Build better strategies to support the well-being of our employees.

 There is an improved understanding and evidenced based profile of customers, 
which will:
o Inform front line service delivery when dealing with customers.
o Ensure we adapt our services accordingly for newly arrived citizens.
o Help us to improve and shape service delivery to meet the needs of our 

customers.
o Improve information to services users.

 There is consistent, accurate and robust collation and recording of employee and 
customer equality data.

Equality Objective 4 - Gender/Equal Pay
 We have fair, open and transparent pay, grading, remuneration and recruitment 

strategies and plans so that the reduction in the pay gap is achieved.
 Pay and grading structures and recruitment practices in the Council treat all staff 

and applicants equally, regardless of gender.

7.5. The aim of the Merthyr Tydfil Armed Forces Community Covenant is to strengthen 
the shared commitment we all have to our Armed Forces, allowing them to be 
supported in community life, and community life to be supported by them, which will:

 Encourage local communities to support the armed forces community in their 
areas and to nurture public understanding and awareness among the public of 
issues affecting the armed forces community.

 Recognise and remember the sacrifices faced by the armed forces community.

Page 24



 Encourage activities which help to integrate the armed forces community into 
local life.

 Encourage the armed forces community to help and support the wider 
community, whether through participation in events and joint projects, or other 
forms of engagement.

Welsh Language

7.6. Welsh Language is a key element of the Council’s Equality agenda. The Council 
promote and facilitate the use of the Welsh language by observing the following 
guiding principles:

 Individuals have the right to deal with us in Welsh.
 Welsh must be positioned to be read first (to the left or above the English).
 Language rights for staff.
 The quality of service and a positive attitude are important.
 We must offer Welsh language services to give language choice.

7.7. These guiding principles will support the Council in finalising a Vision for the Welsh 
language as part of the Standard that requires the Local Authority to develop a Welsh 
Language Promotional Strategy.   

7.8. As a Welsh language service our aim is to support service areas across the Council to 
comply with the Standards wherever possible.

7.9. Measures will be considered as part of the Standard that requires the Council to 
develop a Welsh Language Promotional Strategy.

8. WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT
Equalities

8.1. Continue to implement the Equalities Action Plan.

Welsh Language

8.2. Provide further response to the Welsh Language Commissioner on the Council’s 
appeal against a number of the Standards and continue to support services to comply 
with the Standards wherever possible.   

GARETH CHAPMAN
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

COUNCILLOR PHIL WILLIAMS
CABINET MEMBER FOR GOVERNANCE & 

CORPORATE SERVICES

Page 25



EVIDENCE
Title of Document(s)

 Council’s Strategic Equality Plan for 2016-2020.
 Council Minutes.
 Feedback from the consultation on the Strategic Equality Plan and Objectives for 2016-

2020.
 Information used to inform the review of the Strategic Equality Plan for 2012-2016.
 Welsh Language Annual Monitoring Report for 2015-2016.
 Welsh Language Standards Appeals documentation.

Does the report contain any issues that may 
affect the Council’s Constitution? NO

Page 26



Appendix I Data

Equalities

EQUALITY OBJECTIVE 1 - COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

1. Residents think the local authority provides high quality services

Response 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

Agree 46%
(21)

53%
(15)

43%
(21)

Neither Agree nor Disagree 23% 18% 20%
Disagree 31%

(19)
29%
(19)

37%
(20)

There was no 
National 

Survey for 
Wales in 
2015-16

2. Residents think the Local Authority is good at letting people know how it is performing

Response 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

Agree 37%
(19)

36%
(18)

37%
(12)

Neither Agree nor Disagree 21% 16% 15%
Disagree 42%

(19)
48%
(20)

48%
(22)

There was no 
National 

Survey for 
Wales in 
2015-16

P
age 27



3. Residents think they can influence decisions affecting the local area

Response 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

Agree 23%
(12)

25%
(11)

19%
(13)

Neither Agree nor Disagree 24% 18% 21%
Disagree 53%

(6)
57%
(7)

60%
(13)

There was no 
National 

Survey for 
Wales in 
2015-16

4. The Cwm Taf Public Engagement Network and Strategic Group will measure impact by using the main key public 
engagement indicators below

Measures of Success Progress

 I had the opportunity to be involved.
 I felt supported and respected.
 I felt my views were valued.
 My involvement made a difference.

The Strategic Partnership Board (SPB), with the Third Sector, have been tasked 
with developing a more innovative, proactive approach, to involving and listening to 
individuals, service users and communities. This piece of work needs to be fully 
collaborative and not driven by single agency mechanisms and is therefore, being 
carried out through the Cwm Taf Public Engagement Group.

Further to the SPB meeting, leads have met with the Cwm Taf Public Engagement 
Group to refocus the requirements of this group and introduce a region-wide 
Practice Exchange for practitioners undertaking public engagement that will link to 
wider strategic information and encourage networking, reduced duplication and 
improved practice.

P
age 28



EQUALITY OBJECTIVE 2 - EQUALITY AWARENESS RAISING 

Measures of Success Data Source

1. The number and percentage of staff, Councillors and partner organisations who have 
received training in Equalities.

Baseline to be established.

2. Number of hits on Equality training pages and feedback of usefulness of resources. Baseline to be established.
3. Number of different training opportunities provided. Baseline to be established.
4. Number of disciplinaries, whistleblowing and grievances related to equality issues. Baseline to be established.

P
age 29



EQUALITY OBJECTIVE 3 - UNDERSTANDING OUR STAFF AND COMMUNITIES

Measures of Success Progress
1. The Council receives registration as a “Two Ticks” Equal Opportunity Employer. In August 2016 the Council transferred 

over from the Positive about Disability 
‘Two Ticks’ Scheme to the new Disability 
Confident Scheme following the 
changeover introduced by the 
Department for Work and Pensions.

The award certifies that the Council is a 
Disability Confident Employer which 
demonstrates the Local Authority’s 
commitment to recruiting, retaining and 
developing disabled staff.

2. An increase in the number of employees disclosing personal data to allow the 
Council to be sensitive to and meet their needs.

The Council has reviewed its Equalities 
Monitoring Form to ensure that it 
captures the necessary Equality data on 
its employees by taking into account the 
Public Sector Equality Duty reporting and 
relevant information requirements.

The Equalities Monitoring Form that 
captures the equalities data has been 
developed as a section in HR21. This 
was issued to all staff in September 
2016. The staff that do not have access 
to a computer have been provided with 
hard copies of the Form from their 
managers to complete.

As at 10th November 2016, 
approximately 92% of Council staff and 
60% of School Staff have completed the 
Form. This compares to approximately 

P
age 30



Measures of Success Progress
18% previously across both Council and 
School staff.

3. An increase in the number of customers disclosing personal data to allow the 
Council to be sensitive to and meet their needs.

Establish a baseline.

P
age 31



EQUALITY OBJECTIVE 4 - GENDER/EQUAL PAY

Measures of Success Data Source
1. Understanding any gender pay gap the Council may have. Establish a baseline.

Welsh Language

Measures will be considered as part of the Standard that requires the Council to develop a Welsh Language Promotional Strategy.

P
age 32



Appendix II Projects

PROJECTS Apr
2014

Jul
2014

Oct
2014

Jan
2015

Apr
2015

Jul
2015

Oct
2015

Jan
2016

Apr
2016

Jul
2016

Oct
2016

Jan
2017

Project A - Community Engagement

Project B - Equality Awareness Raising

Project C - Understanding our Staff and 
Communities

Project D - Gender/Equal Pay

Project E - Welsh Language Standards

P
age 33



Back

PROJECT (A) Community Engagement

PROJECT MANAGER Corporate Communications, Consultation and Engagement Manager / Other Council Officers / 
Partners

DESCRIPTION Put citizens’ voices at the heart of local decision making so that their contribution is understood, 
recognised and used to help the Council understand and respond to the needs of its communities.

SOURCE Council’s Strategic Equality Plan for 2016-2020.

EXPECTED BENEFIT(S)  Residents of the Merthyr Tydfil communities are provided with an equal opportunity to increase 
their voice and actively participate in influencing Council policy, planning and shaping of 
services.

 Protected characteristic groups are consistently considered throughout the development of 
consultation and engagement work.

START DATE 01 April 2016

FINISH DATE 31 March 2020

PROJECT UPDATE 09 December 2016

Progress is on track. Examples of some of the progress is summarised below:

 The Council continue to engage and work with the MAGNET Project. An example of this is 
where Equality training has been provided to the Council’s Senior Leadership Team and 
Councillors by the MAGNET Project. More information on this training can be found below 
under the Equality Objective for Equality Awareness Raising.

 The Council was proud to be part of Pride Cymru 2016 in August with other public sector 
organisations from across South Wales to engage with the Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and 
Transgender (LGBT) community. The aim was to engage with the LGBT community to find out 
what issues are important to them, and as a result, improve the experiences of local LGBT 
people across South Wales when accessing public services.

To celebrate this event the Rainbow flag was raised outside the Civic Centre on the same day as 
Price Cymru.

P
age 34



 To raise the profile and support the Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender (LGBT) community 
within Merthyr Tydfil and build on the LGBT History month events held in the libraries and 
museum for the first year in 2014, the Mayor and local MP raised the Rainbow flag outside the 
Civic Centre. This was the second consecutive year that this has been done.

 We have engaged regionally with partners on Hate Crime in order to increase awareness and 
understanding. This included a Cwm Taf Hate Crime Awareness Event held during Hate Crime 
Awareness Week to highlight the ongoing work being conducted in the Cwm Taf area to raise 
awareness and support victims of hate crime.

In addition, the Council and its schools supported Show Racism the Red Card’s “Wear Red Day” 
on Friday 21st October 2016.

Back

PROJECT (B) Equality Awareness Raising

PROJECT MANAGER Corporate Risk and Equalities Manager /  HR Manager / other Council Officers / Partners

DESCRIPTION To support and facilitate Equalities training and learning opportunities so that staff at all levels, 
Councillors and partners recognise and incorporate Equalities as part of their role.

SOURCE Council’s Strategic Equality Plan for 2016-2020.

EXPECTED BENEFIT(S)  Staff, Councillors and partner organisations receive training on Equalities.
 The Council promotes equalities in the workplace.
 Councillors are empowered with an insight, knowledge and understanding about the different 

communities they represent in the County Borough.

START DATE 01 April 2016

FINISH DATE 31 March 2020

PROJECT UPDATE 09 December 2016

Progress is on track. Examples of some of the progress is summarised below:

 Equality training has been provided to the Council’s Senior Leadership Team and Councillors by 
the MAGNET Project to provide Council employees and Councillors with an insight, knowledge 

P
age 35



and understanding about the different communities that each project represents, and the 
communities that they represent. The training sessions consisted of the following:

o Key issues facing these minority groups.
o Discuss next steps i.e. what can you do in your role to further engage with the projects to 

influence Council policy, planning and shaping of services?

The Chief Executive has invited the MAGNET Project back to provide follow up training to the 
Senior Leadership Team in February 2017 focussing on the experiences of the project leads 
and members of their groups in accessing Council services.

 347 staff to date have attended the Workshop to Raise Awareness of Prevent (WRAP training). 
Prevent is part of the Government’s counter-terrorism strategy; it's designed to tackle the 
problem of terrorism at its roots, preventing people from supporting terrorism or becoming 
involved in terrorism themselves.

Back

PROJECT (C) Understanding our Staff and Communities

PROJECT MANAGER HR Manager / Corporate Risk and Equalities Manager

DESCRIPTION Develop robust monitoring systems to collect, collate, monitor and publish equalities data on our 
employees and customers, which will help the Council to ensure that it provides fair and accessible 
services.

SOURCE Council’s Strategic Equality Plan for 2016-2020.

EXPECTED BENEFIT(S)  There is an improved understanding and evidenced based profile of its employees, which will:
o Ensure we are a good employer that provides equal opportunities for all staff.
o Effectively deploy our duty of care to our employees.
o Build better strategies to support the well-being of our employees.

 There is an improved understanding and evidenced based profile of customers, which will:
o Inform front line service delivery when dealing with customers.
o Ensure we adapt our services accordingly for newly arrived citizens.
o Help us to improve and shape service delivery to meet the needs of our customers.
o Improve information to services users.

 There is consistent, accurate and robust collation and recording of employee and customer 
equality data.

P
age 36



START DATE 01 April 2016

FINISH DATE 31 March 2020

PROJECT UPDATE 09 December 2016

Progress is on track. Examples of some of the progress is summarised below:

 To date there has been an excellent response from Council staff and schools on completing the 
revised and updated Equalities Monitoring Form that was rolled out in September 2016.

As at 10th November 2016, approximately 92% of Council staff and 60% of School Staff have 
completed the Form. This compares to approximately 18% previously across both Council and 
School staff.

 In August 2016 the Council transferred over from the Positive about Disability ‘Two Ticks’ 
Scheme to the new Disability Confident Scheme following the changeover introduced by the 
Department for Work and Pensions.

The award certifies that the Council is a Disability Confident Employer which demonstrates the 
Local Authority’s commitment to recruiting, retaining and developing disabled staff.

 Currently working with the Council’s Senior Leadership Team to review what Equality data 
service areas are capturing on our customers, what they are using the data for and how they are 
reporting it.

Back

PROJECT (D) Gender/Equal Pay

PROJECT MANAGER HR Manager

DESCRIPTION Ensure equity of pay across Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council.

SOURCE Council’s Strategic Equality Plan for 2016-2020.

EXPECTED BENEFIT(S)  We have fair, open and transparent pay, grading, remuneration and recruitment strategies and 
plans so that the reduction in the pay gap is achieved.

P
age 37



 Pay and grading structures and recruitment practices in the Council treat all staff and applicants 
equally, regardless of gender.

START DATE 01 April 2016

FINISH DATE 31 March 2020

PROJECT UPDATE 09 December 2016

Progress is on track. Baseline data has been gathered and is currently being analysed.

Back

PROJECT (E) Welsh Language Standards

PROJECT MANAGER Corporate Risk and Equalities Manager

DESCRIPTION Support service areas across the Council to comply with the Welsh Language Standards wherever 
possible.

SOURCE Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council’s Welsh Language Standards Compliance Notice.

EXPECTED BENEFIT(S) The Council complies with the Standards.

START DATE 30 March 2016

FINISH DATE The requirement to comply with the Standards in ongoing.

PROJECT UPDATE 09 December 2016

Progress is on track. Examples of some of the progress is summarised below:

 The Council’s has drafted its Welsh Language Promotional Strategy following consultation with 
the Fforwm Sirol. A draft Business Case has also been prepared for the Strategy which includes 
the related costs, timelines and barriers to implementation.
 

 There has been a record number of staff learning Welsh this year where we are now running a 
Mynediad 1 and 2 class.

 The Council is currently working with Canolfan Soar:

P
age 38



o To undertake “Mystery Shopper” exercises to help identify any areas for improvement and 
areas where we are at risk of non-compliance with the Standards.

o To pilot bespoke, short, targeted training courses to address some of the critical issues 
raised in our discussions with Chief Officers, Heads of Service and Line Managers.

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Scrutiny Committee Work Programme

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance for the next scrutiny committee meeting.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 The Committee considers its work programme and approve, revise or amend it as 
deemed appropriate; and to consider the questions above in planning for the next 
meeting.

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND
3.1 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda. 

3.2 At each meeting the committee will agree the agenda items for their next meeting 
and in preparation may in advance wish to ask itself the following questions.

Q) Why has the item been placed on a scrutiny work programme?
a. Does this item/topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan 

and priorities?
b. Is this item/topic relating to service performance concerns?
c. Is this item/topic of significant public interest?
d. Has the item/topic got budgetary implications?

Date Written 24th November 2016
Report Author Scrutiny Section
Service Area Legal & Governance Services
Committee Division Scrutiny 
Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt
Committee Date 20th December2016

Page 41

Agenda Item 7



e. Is this a item/topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 
difference and achieve tangible outcomes?

f. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 
resources?

Q) What is the specific role of the committee?
           This will depend on the item – for example the role could be:

a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 
department

b. to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose
c. to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 

major issue 
d. to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 

investigation / review
e. to explore possible solutions to an issue

Q) What outcome is the committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item?

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council 

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes.
c. To receive an overview presentation.
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy / strategy
e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 

pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work. 

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the corporate plan / other plan / other strategy.

g. Improvement in service delivery

Q) What information does the committee need to fulfil this role / achieve 
this outcome? 
What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas / 
solutions.

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information?
Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police,  Health Board etc

Q) Does the committee need to ask for written representations?
The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate / Cabinet 
member / External Partner etc prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending ensure that they have the information / answer 
ready for the meeting. 

Q) Which meeting format / venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend?
Meetings do not have to be held in a formal committee room environment. 
You may wish to hold occasional meetings out in the community e.g. 

Page 42



community centres, sports facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some 
people find the formal setting intimidating. Site visits for example may be more 
appropriate to see first-hand what the committee is investigating / obtaining 
information on e.g. waste sites, regeneration projects etc.

3.3 Just so the scrutiny committees are aware the Council has seven key priorities as 
per the Corporate Plan. These are:- 1) Raising Standards of Attainment; 2) 
Employability;  3) Economic Development;  4) Promoting Active Lifestyles;  5) 
Promoting Independence; 6) Meeting the Needs of Vulnerable Children and 7)  A 
Sustainable Environment.

These seven Council priority areas are delivered through 4 themes and each of the 4 
Chief Officers has ownership and responsibility for one of them. The 4 themes are:-

 Raising Standards - (Chief Officer for Learning/ Cabinet member for 
Learning) 
Learning & LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee

 Improving Wellbeing - (Chief Officer for Social Services / Cabinet member 
for Social Services)
Social Services Scrutiny Committee

 Economic Growth - (Chief Officer for Community Regeneration / Cabinet 
member for Regeneration, Planning and Countryside)
Regeneration, Planning & Countryside Scrutiny Committee

 Sustainable Development - (Chief Officer for Neighbourhood Services / 
Cabinet member for Neighbourhood Services and Public Protection)
Neighbourhood Services and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee

3.4 To reflect the 4 themes as per above in a convenient form, 4 “strategies on a page” 
have been developed each reflects the Measures of Success; Desired Outcomes 
and Strategic Aims and Objectives.

3.5 Much of Scrutiny committee activity is aligned to the delivery of the Council’s 
corporate priorities and the “strategies of a page” can assist scrutiny committees in 
this role. See appendix I for the “strategies of a page”

3.6 A copy of the Committees work programme is also attached.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

No

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Measures of Success

Raising Standards

Desired Outcomes

Strategic Aims 

All learners attain at least
the expected standard at all

stages in their education

Vision:

AIM 1: Improve the quality of
leadership including the leadership
of learning and teaching

AIM 2: Improve LA and
commissioned services

Leadership in all schools
is good or better

All members of the
education community

collaborate well in order
to improve the standards
and wellbeing of pupils

Teaching in all schools
is good or better

LA provision improves 
standards of attainment 

and the quality of
leadership and teaching 

in schools

P
age 45



Specific Measurable Outcomes - Measures of Success

Improving Wellbeing

Desired Outcomes

Strategic Aims & Objectives:

Social Services:
- Children
- Adults
- Safeguarding

We will help people in
Merthyr Tydfil to maximise their
potential, be free from poverty,

be independent and healthy
and to live in supportive and

resilient communities.
People in Merthyr Tydfil 

will be able to lead 
independent and 

fulfilled lives.
Vulnerable children in 

Merthyr Tydfil live 
healthy, safe and fulfilled 

lives.

People in Merthyr Tydfil 
are physically active and 

as a result have 
improved health.

Vision:

P
age 46



Economic	  Growth	  Plan	  
	  
	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  Vision	  	  	  	  

Priority	  Area	  	   The	  Business	  Base	  	   Baseline	  
	  (year)	   Target	  	   	  	   Priority	  Area	  	   The	  Labour	  Market	  	   Baseline	  

(year)	   Target	  	   	  	   Priority	  Area	  	   Skills	  	   Baseline	  
(year)	   Target	  	  

Key	  Indicator	  	   Count	  of	  birth	  of	  new	  
enterprises	  	   225	  (2013)	   300	   	  	   Key	  Indicator	  	   Economic	  Ac@vity,	  

Unitary	  Authori@es	  in	  
Wales	  	  

27833	  (2011)	   30000	   	  	   Key	  Indicator	  	   Level	  2	  Skills	  	   6682	   7000	  

Indicator	  	   VAT	  /	  PAYE	  Registered	  
Enterprise	  Births	  	   225	  (2013)	   300	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Average	  Gross	  Weekly	  

Earnings	  	   £477.60	  
(2014)	   £500	   	  	   Indicator	   Working	  Age	  PopulaLon	  

with	  level	  2	  qualificaLons	  
(2011)	  	  	  

6682	   7000	  

Indicator	  	   VAT	  /	  PAYE	  Registered	  
Enterprise	  Deaths	  	   135	  (2013)	   100	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Claimant	  Count	  Levels	  	   1,100	  (Mar	  2015)	   900	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Working	  Age	  PopulaLon	  

with	  no	  qualificaLons	  
(2011)	  

9963	   9000	  

	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Gross	  Disposal	  
Household	  Income	  Per	  
Head	  	  	  

£13,500	   £14000	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	  

	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   Indicator	   Unemployment	  Levels	  
16	  +	  	   2000	   1600	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	  

	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Economic	  InacLvity	  
Levels	  16-‐64	  year	  olds	   7,900	   7,300	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	  

 

AIM 1: Develop a diverse 
and vibrant business 

base 

	  	  

AIM 2: Create a flexible, 
resilient and responsive 

labour market 	  

 
 

AIM 3:  Increase the 
quality and skills within 
the existing and future 

workforce necessary for 
effective business growth  

	  	  

 
 

AIM 4: Improve and create 
the right infrastructure to 

enable and accelerate 
business growth   

	  	  

Measurable	  Outcomes	  	  

Desired	  Outcomes	  	  

P
age 47



A Sustainable Environment

Vision
People in Merthyr Tydfil 
will live in communities 
that are sustainable, clean 
and energy efficient. 

Waste Management
Energy Management
Environmental Quality  - Cleaning / Fly Tipping / Litter
           - Air Quality
           - Noise

Flood Management
Planning & Countryside
Wildlife & Biodiversity
Parks & Open SpacesSpecific Measurable Outcomes - ‘Scores on Doors’

  - Measure of Success

Strategic Aims & Objectives -

Desired Outcomes -

Creation of more
‘Greener’ jobs

P
age 48



Governance, Performance, Business Change and Corporate Services Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2016/17

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

(Work programme Version August 2016)

Date / Timing Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet 
Member 

Scrutiny Focus 

Debt Recovery Firms Cllr Phil Williams. 
Mark Thomas / 
Mike Parry

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Petition Submission: Merthyr Council Stop Using Debt 
Recovery Firms. A member of the public has contacted the Chief Executive 
campaigning that MTCBC stops employing the services of debt recovery companies. 
“The use of debt recovery companies by the council clearly victimizes the least 
financially secure people in the town who are struggling to keep up with council tax 
bills, rent (often due to bedroom tax) and even parking charges...”

Older People’s 
Commissioner for 
Wales – Guidance

For information Progress report - Older People’s Commissioner for Wales - Guidance on Equality and 
Human Rights Impact Assessments (EHRIA) and Scrutinising Changes to Community 
Services in Wales.

Performance EMcW/Cllr P 
Williams

Scrutiny & Challenge:-
Corporate Plan – Priority Area 1-7 Reports.  An update on progress against the 
Corporate Plan

Cwm Taf Public 
Services Board.

For information Progress report - Joint Scrutiny Committee to scrutinise the Cwm Taf Public Services 
Board. An information report providing information setting up the joint PSB; together 
with information regarding setting up the joint scrutiny committee (MTCBC and 
RCTCBC).

5th July 2016

Performance EMcW/Cllr P 
Williams

Scrutiny & Challenge:-  Corporate Plan – Annual Delivery Document

Performance EMcW/Cllr P 
Williams

Scrutiny & Challenge:-
Service Performance Reports – 

1. Corporate Services
2. Legal & HR
3. Finance

An update on progress implementing the service strategy and the associated risks, 
issues and challenges for example activities from the Performance Board challenge.
*Appendices = Performance Board Updates.  To include a synopsis from the 
Performance Board on each report.

27th September 2016

Performance EMcW/Cllr P 
Williams

Scrutiny & Challenge:-  Annual Performance Report.  The annual performance report 
on the Corporate Plan.

P
age 49



Governance, Performance, Business Change and Corporate Services Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2016/17

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

(Work programme Version August 2016)

Child Sexual 
Exploitation - 
Rotherham MBC -
Action Plan

Cllr L. Matthews / 
LCJ

Scrutiny and Challenge: - A review of processes and policies was undertaken as part 
of a Safeguarding Review panel and an action plan produced. “MTCBC Safeguarding 
Review Improvement Action Plan”. The action plan to come to this committee.

Referral from Regeneration Scrutiny Committee. At the Regeneration Scrutiny meeting on 26th January 
the Committee was provided an action plan – “MTCBC Safeguarding Review Improvement Action Plan”. 
The Licensing section actions were reported to the committee. The Committee however felt that 
ownership of monitoring the actions of the action plan should be by the Governance Scrutiny 
Committee as it was authority–wide. The Governance Scrutiny Committee to consider how to deal with 
this matter. (A report on the matter was agended at Council on 02/12/2015 MTCBC Corporate response 
to the Casey report”

Performance
(Business Change 
report – others 

available to scrutiny 
Ewan Mc Williams to 

update the 
committee) )

EMcW/Cllr P 
Williams and 

various Officers 
responsible for the 

areas as shown 
across 1 - 8

Scrutiny & Challenge:-  
Corporate Plan – Priority Area 1-7 Reports.  An update on progress against the 
Corporate Plan. Service Performance Reports:-

1. Business Change 
2. Communication & Marketing
3. ICT
4. Performance
5. Finance
6. Legal
7. HR and Payroll
8. Customer and Service Support
9. Annual Performance Report 2015/16 ( Report on the delivery of the Councils Corporate 

Priorities)
An update on progress implementing the service strategy and the associated risks, 
issues and challenges for example activities from the Performance Board challenge.

The Well-being of 
Future Generations 
(Wales) Act – 6 
months on….

Cllr Phil Williams / 
GC

Scrutiny & Challenge:-  The Act became law on 29th April 2015 and came into effect 
on 1st April 2016. The new law has 7 Wellbeing Goals and all the public bodies know 
what they must work towards. The Committee requires a report on progress in 
implementing the requirements of the Act.

8th November 2016

Task and Finish Group 
Update - Use of 
External Debt 
Recovery Companies

Members of the 
T&F Group (Cllr B 
Smith, Cllr D Isaac 
and Cllr T Lewis)

An update on the meeting between the T&FG, Mr Williams, and officers of the 
Authority.

P
age 50



Governance, Performance, Business Change and Corporate Services Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2016/17

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

(Work programme Version August 2016)

Business Change 

Performance EMcW/Cllr P 
Williams

Scrutiny & Challenge:-  Corporate Plan – Mid year Performance Report

Performance EMcW/Cllr P 
Williams

Scrutiny & Challenge:-  Service Performance Reports – 
1. Corporate Services
2. Legal & HR
3. Finance

An update on progress implementing the service strategy and the associated risks, 
issues and challenges for example activities from the Performance Board challenge.

Cwm Taf Public 
Services Board

GC / Cllr PW Scrutiny & Challenge:-  The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act  2015 
introduced Public Service Boards.  The roles and responsibilities of PSB’s have been 
made statutory. A report on how the Cwm Taf Service Board is progressing.

20th December 2016

Anti-Poverty Strategy AO / Cllr PW Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Authority is developing an Anti-Poverty Strategy led by 
Alyn Owen (Chief Officer). The Committee wishes to have sight of the strategy as part 
of pre-scrutiny before it is progressed to Cabinet / Council

The Wellbeing 
Assessment

RCT Officers (see 
email 8th November 

2016.)

The Wellbeing Assessment (under the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act) 
is currently being drafted by a group of officers (the Population/Wellbeing 
Assessment Core Group), reporting to the Cwm Taf Public Services Board. Under the 
Act, the Wellbeing Assessment must to be consulted on by the scrutiny function of 
the PSB.
 
The Core Group has also built in time in the next stage of the project (following the 
production of a Draft Wellbeing Assessment Report) for formal scrutiny of the work. 
In the absence of a joint committee to undertake scrutiny of PSB work at this time, 
officers will attend the relevant committee in each authority to present the Draft 
Report.

31st January 2017

Performance EMcW/Cllr P 
Williams

Scrutiny & Challenge:-  Service Performance Report (Subject Area - to be confirmed). 
An update on progress implementing the service strategy and the associated risks, 

P
age 51



Governance, Performance, Business Change and Corporate Services Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2016/17

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

(Work programme Version August 2016)

issues and challenges for example activities from the Performance Board challenge.

Strategic Equality Plan Cllr PW / Mark 
Thomas

Scrutiny & Challenge:- In line with the Equality Act 2010 and public sector equality 
duty for Wales, all public authorities must produce a strategic equality plan 
containing set equality objectives. Scrutiny has a role to play in ensuring that equality 
principles are mainstreamed and reflected in service delivery.

The Welsh Language 
Standards

(No. 5) Regulations 
2016 – 6 months on…

MT/Cllr PW Scrutiny & Challenge:- The Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 makes Welsh an 
official language in Wales. This means it must be treated no less favourably than 
English. The Welsh Language Commissioner has published the Welsh Language 
Standards. These are a set of legally binding requirements which will apply to Welsh 
Government from 30 March 2016.  The Committee requires a report on progress in 
implementing the requirements of the Act/Regulations.

Estyn Inspection 
follow up and LEA 

preparedness 

DH / Cllr Harvey 
Jones / GC

Scrutiny & Challenge: -   Following Estyn’s inspection of education services for 
children and young people in November 2012, the authority was identified as 
requiring special measures. It was not until January 2016 that the LEA was removed 
from special measures. This Committee is seeking an update position as to where the 
Authority currently stands should there be a further inspection.

Performance EMcW/Cllr P 
Williams

Scrutiny & Challenge:-  
Corporate Plan – Priority Area 1-7 Reports.  An update on progress against the 
Corporate Plan
Service Performance Reports – 

1. Corporate Services
2. Legal & HR
3. Finance

An update on progress implementing the service strategy and the associated risks, 
issues and challenges for example activities from the Performance Board challenge.

14th March 2017

Performance and 
Challenge  against 
“Strategies on a Page”

 Gareth 
Chapman/Ellis 
Cooper/Cllr 
Brendan Toomey/ 
Cllr Phil Williams

Scrutiny & Challenge:  Performance against each of the “strategies on a 
page”. Follow on from 1st March 2016 meeting. An update on the delivery 
against the strategies and how they are progressing. 

P
age 52



Governance, Performance, Business Change and Corporate Services Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2016/17

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

(Work programme Version August 2016)

Performance EMcW/Cllr P 
Williams

Scrutiny & Challenge:-  
Service Performance Reports

1. Business Change
2. Communication & Marketing
3. ICT
4. Performance

An update on progress implementing the service strategy and the associated risks, 
issues and challenges for example activities from the Performance Board challenge.25th April 2017

Draft Annual Scrutiny 
Report 2016/17

HJ / Cllr Phil 
Williams

Scrutiny & Challenge:- The Scrutiny Committees are required to prepare annual 
report on the work they have carried out through the year. With there being local 
government elections in May 2017, it is suggested that the draft report is agreed at 
this meeting.

P
age 53



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Update on Public Services Board and related activity linked to the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act
	5 Equalities and Welsh Language Performance Report - Organisational Support
	7 Scrutiny Work Programme 2016-17
	Appendix 1
	Committee Work Programme


